HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
THI RD SPECI AL SESSI ON
Cct ober 28, 2015
1:34 p.m

1: 34:17 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Neuman called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Mark Neuman, Co-Chair
Representati ve Steve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative Lynn Gattis
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki
Representati ve Cat hy Minoz
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Vincent Lee, Director, Mjor Projects Developnent, TG,

Representati ve Benj am n Nageak, Representati ve Dave
Tal eri co, Representative Andy Josephson, Representative Bob
Herron, Representative Shelley Hughes, Representative Sam

Kito Ill, Representative Liz Vazquez, Representative Adam
Whol, Representative Neil Foster, Representative GCeran
Tarr, Representative Jim Colver, Representative Kurt d son,
Representati ve Dan Otiz, Speaker M ke Chenaul t

Representative Gabriel LeDoux, Representative Mtt C aman,
Representative Lora Reinbold, Representative Louise Stutes,
Senat or Peter M cciche, Senator Pete Kelly.

SUMVARY

HB 3001 APPROP: LNG PRQIECT & FUND/ AGDC/ SUPP.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



HB 3001 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

PRESENTATI ON:  TRANSCANADA

Co-Chair Neuman reviewed the agenda for the day. He
relayed that the Director of the major projects of TC
1:35:36 PM

#HB3001

HOUSE BI LL NO. 3001

An Act meking supplenmental appropriations; rmaking

appropriations to capitalize funds; maki ng
appropriations to the general fund from the budget
reserve fund (art. 11X sec. 17, Constitution of the

State of Alaska) in accordance with sec. 12(c), ch. 1,
SSSLA 2015; and providing for an effective date.

1: 35: 36 PM

NPRESENTATI ON: . TRANSCANADA

1: 35: 36 PM

VI NCENT LEE, DI RECTOR, MAJOR PRQIECTS DEVEL OPMVENT,
TRANSCANADA (TO), expl ai ned that the Menorandum of
Understanding (M) was established in 2013, and the
materials were formalized in June 2014. He shared that TC
agreed with the recomendation of termnation of the
agreenent between the state and TC. He announced that TC no
longer felt the project was feasible for the conpany. He
stated that TC wanted to work with the state to transition
snoot hly as possi bl e. He believed the buyout of TC was in
the best interest of all participants.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er queried further det ai | of TC s
i nvol venent in the project.

M. Lee explained that the relationship between TC and the
state began in the late 1970s to develop a transportation
system to nonetize Al aska gas. He stated that there were a
nunber of North Anmerican pipeline conpanies who had
partnered with the state and TC at that tinme to develop a
gas transportation system That effort ended in the md-

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



1980s, because of the fundanmental nmarket changes in North
Anerica. He shared that there had been evaluations of
different configurations, such as liquid natural gas (LNG.
As recent as 2004, TC actively reengaged in the project. He
stated that TC had negotiated a term sheet with the state
adm ni stration, and had evolved over tine under the Al aska
Gasline Inducenment Act (AGJA). He shared that TC was
granted the |license in late 2008, and were the AGA
licensee. He shared that TC had worked jointly on the
project until 2003 [at 1:41:48, he clarified that he neant
2013], as a result of the significant derailnment in the
Lower 48. He stated that TC had partnered wth
ConocoPhi |l ips and BP on the current LNG effort.

1:41: 48 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er wonder if he neant 2013. M. Lee replied
inthe affirnmative.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked when the admnistration had
i ndi cated that TC be rel eased.

M. Lee responded that TC had heard of late May or early
June. It was expressed that the administration's desire was
to buyout TC.

Vice-Chair Saddler wondered if the reference was the
"anmended plan.”

M. Lee indicated that he referred to the anended plan, the
idea was that it incorporated an exit plan wth the
snoot hest transition and exit plan.

Co- Chair Neuman asked why Decenber 4, 2015 was the date of
departure.

M. Lee indicated that the date had to do wi th budgeting
for the follow ng year.

Vi ce- Chai r Saddl er wondered whether the state was operating
on the anended pl an.

M. Lee responded that the amended plan had not been
executed. He stated that TC was operating under the
existing plan. He stressed that there was a plan to
continue to work with the admnistration to develop a
purchase and sales agreenent, which would provide the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



framework for TC to convey its interest the project to the
adm nistration; in return, the state would pay the TC
incurred costs to date.

1:47: 26 PM

Co-Chair Neuman wondered if TC would opt out of the
project, should the state decide to no buy out the portion.

M. Lee suggested that the TC had that right to opt out of
the project, and would consider it an option.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked if state had the right to vote on
Decenber 4, should the |egislature adopt the |egislation.

M. Lee replied that the state nust pay TC in full, then TC
woul d waive its full interest to the state.

Co- Chair Thonmpson announced that TC nust be paid in full
in order for the state to receive its voting right.

M. Lee replied in the affirmtive.

Representative Pruitt asked M. Lee to remnd the conmttee
of TC s experience and investnents.

M. Lee indicated that the nmgjority of TC s investnents
were within North America. He stated that TC had three
maj or busi nesses: natural gas pipeline business; |iquids
pi peline business; and an energy business specifically
related to primary power generation facilities in the
United States, Canada, and Mexico. He stated that TC had
some investnments in South Anerica, as a result of the
i nvol venent in international investnment. A significant
portion of those investnents had been divested in the early
2000s. He announced that TC had approximtely 68,000
kil ometers of pipe across North America. He shared that TC
had approximately 11,000 negawatts in power generation
facilities. He stressed that TC had substantial expertise
in developing pipeline and energy projects. The market
capitalization was in the range of roughly $35 billion.

Representative Pruitt wondered if the AKLNG was a viable
proj ect .

M. Lee replied that TC s involvenent in AKLNG was in the
m dstream portion, which was the gas treatnent plant and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



the pipeline. He stated that TC had significant expertise
in the pipeline and gas treatnent plant.

1:53: 28 PM

Representative Pruitt wonder ed if the project was
consi dered vi abl e.

M. Lee answered in the affirmative, and stated that TC
believed the project had a significant anount of potential.
He shared that TC was renoving itself in order not to
i npede t he project.

Representative Pruitt wondered whether TC could profit from
the project. He expressed concern about the state's ability
to create an environnent to push TC aside. He queried
Al aska's expertise to fill the void left by TC

M. Lee replied that the project was fundanentally good. He
stated that the current admnistration had a different take
on the state's role in the project. He opined that the
adm ni stration thought the state would have nore influence
on the project without TC. He clainmed he was not as
know edgeabl e about sone of the people involved in the
project and state's ability to nanage the project.

1: 58: 21 PM

Representative Pruitt relayed that M. Lee had explained
that TC had a | ayer of expertise in building a gas line. He
wanted to know if TC believed the state had the expertise
to step into the role TC had pl ayed thus far.

M. Lee informed the commttee that TC was not a pipeline

builder. The state of Alaska wll gain experience over
time. Meanwhile, there were sonme voids that nust be filled,
and encouraged the state to fill those positions

accordingly.

Co- Chair Neuman rel ayed there would be future testinony and
presentations that would outline the state's qualifications
further. He wondered how the project devel opnent team would
work together to ensure that the |owest prices for the cost
of devel opnent would result in the best decisions.

M. Lee responded that the project managenent team was a
collection of experts from the various participants in the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



project. He shared that the technical team provided key
parti ci pants. He renmarked that the key to profit
maxi m zation included ensuring that the costs were as |ow
as possible. He stressed that the stopgap between the three
producers would likely relate to ensuring that the cost of
the project was as |low and reasonable as possible. He
shared that the project team was adequate ensuring proper
cost managenment. The project team had evaluated different
risks for various elenents of the project, but remarked
that there would be continued refinenments as the project
noved forward into the FEED and constructi on phases.

2:04:36 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki wondered if the "break up”" with TC
was a nutual decision

M. Lee suggested it was closer to a nmutual resolution. He
noted the inportance of having an alignnent. He indicated
that the two entities were |ess aligned than before.

Representati ve Kawasaki wondered if conmm ssioner would not
sign off on the buyout should the conditions not be
favorable to the state.

M. Lee was trying to better wunderstand Representative
Kawasaki's question. He relayed that TC would consider
seriously termnating if the state did not.

Representati ve Kawasaki remarked that TC had supported the
governor's decision to buyout TC s portion of the project.
He asked for further information about that position.

M. Lee replied that it was not comrercially reasonable for
TCto remain in the project.

Co- Chair Neunman wondered if TC would rejoin the project,
should the producers decide to not participate in the
project while allowing their gas to be sold at comercially
reasonabl e rat es.

M. Lee responded that TC nust be given all the facts at
that tinme, before any decision could be made. He felt that
it was premature to offer a response to that inquiry.

2:10:12 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



Representative Gara understood that TC s nmin objective was
to make a profit. He believed TC s people were always
"straight shooters.” He spoke of many legislators to buy
out TC s interest. He asked that if the state opted to
buyout TC it would have to pay an additional interest of 7
percent .

Representative Gara clarified that TC was not a buil der but
an owner and devel oper.

M. Lee indicated that he was correct.

Representative Gara asked if TC would choose to stay wth
the project under different circunstances.

M. Lee felt that npre information and research would be
requi red before he could respond to that question.

Representative Gara wondered if the project was feasible.

M. Lee agreed that if TC owned 100 percent interest in the
project the project would be viable.

Representative Gara noted that 95 percent of the project
costs would be in the construction phase. He noted that the
cost would not be spent until there was a seller of gas, a
conmmtted buyer of the gas, and a facts that ensured that
the price of gas nakes the project feasible.

M. Lee replied that a pipeline service provider required,
first, a firm transportation service agreenent from a
credit worthy party. He stressed that the pipeline did not
own nor sell the gas.

Representative Gara wondered if TC would invest in the
construction without the three listed requirenents.

M. Lee replied in the affirmative.

2:16:58 PM

Representati ve Minoz asked about the FTSA, and whet her DNR
had indicated a firmtransportati on agreenment was about two
weeks out. She wondered if M. Lee agreed wth that
schedul e.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



M. Lee thought that two weeks was an aggressive timnmefrane.
He stressed that the FTSA was significant, and required
conpleted areas. He stressed that it would probably take
| onger than two weeks to conpl ete.

Representative Minoz asked if TC s ability and goals were
encroached upon and at what point TC was aware of the
buyout .

M. Lee indicated TC becane aware of a potential buyout in
May or June of 2015. He did feel that comunication began
to inhibit TCs ability to operate fully on future
agreenent negoti ati ons.

Representative Mnoz wondered where TCs interest would
lie, specifically in AGDC or DNR

M. Lee relayed that his inpression would nost likely go to
AGDC, however DNR woul d have to designate that authority.

2:21:29 PM

Representative Minoz queried the next steps and TC s exit
strat egy.

M. Lee nentioned putting in to place a purchase and sal es
agreenent. He believed that the term nati on agreenent coul d
be executed within a short period of tine.

Representative Minoz queried any advice to the state wth
the full 25 percent interest.

M. Lee He discussed that all such projects took tinme and
focusing on the long-term goal was very inportant, and
stressed that TC believed the project was a good project.

Co- Chair Neunman wondered how the world would see Al aska as
a player in resource devel opnent, should the project not
nove forward.

M. Lee responded that the project was very inportant to
the state, because it would nonetize the avail able gas. The
project would also signal a positive business environnment
in Alaska. He opined that nore people would |ook for
resources in the state.

2:26: 35 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



Representative Edgnon wondered whether the decision had
been made that TC would exit the project.

M. Lee responded in the affirmative.

Representati ve Edgnon asked if there was a chance that the
line did not get built based on commodity prices of oil.

M. Lee stated that he thought it was a typical cycle. He
recommended staying focused on the long term due to price
equi librium

2:28: 43 PM

Represent ati ve Edgnon asked how the rest of the world would
treat the exit of TC in the project versus TC voluntarily
exiting down the road.

M. Lee responded that he could not offer an opinion as to
how the other conpanies would respond to the exit. He
stressed that TCs exit from the project was a nutua
decision with the state. He remarked that TC understood the
concern and the position of the adm nistration.

Representative Edgnon asked about his thoughts about the
state of Alaska being a general partner rather than a
l[imted partner. He queried the value of the voting rights.

M. Lee believed voting rights should be comm serate wth
one's i nvest ment . The arrangenent of the previous
adm nistration was viable. He felt the necessary to have
the wvoting rights to be able to invest. The current
admnistration wanted a direct say in the vote. He stressed
that if TC was the party with the noney it should have the
vot e.

Representative Edgnon felt that the commttee was operating
in the context of the aftermath.

2:34:42 PM

Representative Gattis mentioned exit strategies and plans.
She stated that the purchase and sal es agreenent that would
define the exit.

Co- Chair Thonpson interjected, "anended plan."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



Representative Gattis wondered how the state should nove
forward to protect itself, and ensure that the proper
enpl oyees were in place in the process.

M. Lee reported that the anended precedent agreenent was
"shelved.” He reported that TC had worked wth the
adm nistration on the agreenent for the previous few
mont hs. The draft agreenment did not work out between the
state and TC, assuming that the legislation would get
passed. The anended precedent agreenent was an outline of
how the exit would happen. A sales and purchase agreenent
woul d still have to be executed.

Representative Gattis summari zed that the anended agreenent
was no | onger necessary because it would be replaced with a
pur chase and sal es agreenent.

M. Lee agreed.

Co- Chair Thonpson wondered if TC would allow its project
secondees to stay with the project during the transition
process.

M. Lee replied in the affirmative, and explained that the
seconded enployees would stay with the project until the
end of May 2016

Co- Chair Thonpson asked how nmany enployees would be
seconded.

M. Lee replied that there would be 15 seconded enpl oyees.

2:40: 04 PM

Representative Quttenberg noted that TC had assuned that
they would be termnated from the project since around My
2015. He noted that the FTSA would take |onger than two
weeks, so he wondered what the neeting in Decenber would be
like if the voting was not clear.

M. Lee stated that it would be a very difficult neeting.
He felt that it would put the project at risk, and would

have a significant inpact of the project. There would be
now aut horization for work, and a significant set-back to
the project. He stressed that there would be no

authorization for spending beyond Decenber 31, 2015. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



announced that TC had been trying to enphasize the
i nportance of finalizing a buyout prior to Decenber 4th so
that the state could have its full vote.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked if TC to approve the budget w thout
t he buyout taking pl ace.

M. Lee replied that TC would |ikely not approve a budget
in that circunstance.

Representative Quttenberg expressed frustration that the
state may not be able to defend itself.

2:45: 02 PM

Representative WIson wondered if TC would have been
responsible for any of Alaska's share of gas in the
pi pel i ne.

M. Lee responded that it was the state's responsibility to
| ocate a buyer for the gas.

Representative WIson wondered why TC did not exit the
project on its own.

M. Lee stated that in May or June of 2015 the state had
indicated its desire to buyout TC, so TC wanted to work
cooperatively in transitioning with a buyout.

Representative WIson asked if he felt the project was
sl owed down due to the recent events.

M. Lee relayed that he did not believe the project was
sl owed down in Pre-FEED

Representative WIson comented about the significance of
TC noving the project forward even though TC knew about its
probabl e exit.

Co- Chair Neuman noted that there would be secondees from TC
that would assist in the transition. He queried the process
for the transition wth the seconded enpl oyees.

M. Lee replied that 15 secondees would remain on the
project, in order to ensure a snoother transition project.

2:50: 42 PM

House Fi nance Committee 11 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Saddl er wondered who had nade the decision to
"shel f" the anended precedent agreenent, and whether there
a related policy decision that affected the agreenent.

M. Lee replied that the anended precedent agreenent was an
attenpt to map out the process for TCs exit from the
project. He stated that it was not the sane as a purchase
and sal es agreenent, which would still be required for the
transaction. The anended precedent agreenent evolved wth
the communication from the state to termnate the
relationship with TC, followed by an appropriation request
to the legislature. He shared that, toward the end of those
di scussions the admnistration had determned that the
proper process would be to "shelf" the draft agreenent.

Vice-Chair Saddler did not see the difference between a
pur sued process and an abandoned process.

M. Lee explained that the difference between the APS was
that the adm nistration would i ssue the term nation.

Vice-Chair Saddler comented that he had becone aware of
the formation of two subsidiaries within AGYC, and queried
the effect of themon TC

M. Lee had no idea of the subsidiaries and had nothing to
do with them

2:54: 32 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddler wondered why TC wanted to keep the
precedent agreenent confidential.

M. Lee replied that the precedent agr eenent was
traditionally confidential in the comercial world. He
remarked that TC did not want to overly expose what was
included in the precedent agreenent before the negotiations
were conplete on the firm transportations services
agreenent. He understood that there would not be a firm
transportation agreenent in the near future.

Vice-Chair Saddler surmsed that TC was renoved from the
terms of operation, therefore the precedent agreenent had
| ess effect.

M. Lee agreed.

House Fi nance Committee 12 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Saddler queried the lines of authority on the
state's side of the project.

M. Lee replied that TC was currently working with the
comm ssioner of DNR in the termnation project. The
conmi ssi oner had t he authority to term nate t he
relationship with TC

2:57:54 PM

Co-Chair Neuman queried the |ead negotiator between the
state and TC. M. Lee clarified that the point of contact
had changed. He expressed that they had worked with the
deputy comm ssioner of DOR on a variety of issues, and
furthered that it was dependent upon the topic that was
bei ng di scussed.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked if there had been votes taken to
date in which the state and TC had aligned interests. M.
Lee replied that there were votes at the nanagenent
commttee, and asserted that TC and the state always voted
with the interest of the state.

Vice-Chair Saddler referred to governance agreenents, and
inquired about the status of the developnent of the
agreenents. M. Lee relayed that the devel opnment was goi ng
wel | but was not yet finalized. He stated that TC had sone
significant issues with the current nodel.

Vice-Chair Saddler queried the parties negotiating the
governing agreenents. M. Lee replied that all three
producers, TC, AGDC, and the state admnistration were
negoti ati ng the governing agreenents.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked who had taken +the state's
negotiating position. M. Lee replied that M. Boykin was
t he chi ef negotiator.

3:02: 07 PM

Representative Gara expressed concern regarding Al aska
assumng a great level of risk by selling the gas.

Co- Chair Neuman shared that there was an updated version of

SB 138, and the expectation of some changes to that fornmner
| egi sl ati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



Representative Gara discussed known quantities of gas on
the North Slope and wondered if M. Lee could comment on
how to factor known and unknown reserves into the goal of
selling the greatest anmount of gas.

M. Lee referred to the discussed the additional risk
involved in noving forward wth a 48-inch pipe. He
considered that there was nuch information yet to discover
in order to fornmulate a deci sion

3:07: 00 PM

Co-Chair Neuman asked if the state was at the point at
which it could nmake an informed decision as to the pipe
size, and whether there enough information to nake the
decision. M. Lee did not believe that there was not enough
current information to nake that deci sion.

Representative Minoz queried the practicality of the
wi t hdrawal agreenents, and whether those agreenents hel ped
or hindered the progress on a project. M. Lee rem nded the
cormittee that TC was not an oil and gas conpany. He
suggested that the experts may be better equipped to
respond to the query.

3:09:51 PM

Vi ce- Chair Saddl er queried who would replace TC s role as a
financier for the m dstream

M. Lee replied that he did not know who would replace the
financier. He suggested that there was person to stand as
t he financier.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler wondered if there were changes in the
market that the state should keep in mnd in the future
mar ket pl ace.

M. Lee relayed felt supply and demand was nost inportant.

Co-Chair Neuman asked if Alaska's gas was different that
gl obal ly.

M. Lee suggested that as a commodity gas it was the sane.

He explained that Al aska gas had an advantage, because it
was closer to the Asian market. He furthered that that the

House Fi nance Committee 14 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



AKLNG project had strong sponsors in the three major oil
and gas producers.

Co- Chair Neuman di scussed conmittee busi ness.

HB 3001 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chair Neuman revi ewed the agenda for the foll ow ng day.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
3:15:36 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:15 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 10/ 28/ 15 1:34 P. M



